

An agency of the Government of Ontario



Un organisme du gouvernement de l'Ontario

This document was retrieved from the Ontario Heritage Act Register, which is accessible through the website of the Ontario Heritage Trust at **www.heritagetrust.on.ca**.

Ce document est tiré du registre aux fins de la *Loi sur le patrimoine de l'Ontario,* accessible à partir du site Web de la Fiducie du patrimoine ontarien sur **www.heritagetrust.on.ca**.





HERITAGE & LIBRARIES BRANCH

Clerk's Department Corporate Services Commission

October 19, 2004

Evangelical Christian Education Association of Scarborough 4600 Steeles Avenue East Markham, ON L3R 0L2

REGU/RECEIVED 2 1 -10- 2004

Dear Evangelical Christian Education Association of Scarborough:

Re: By-law 2004-294- To designate certain properties as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest (Milliken Public School - 4600 Steeles Avenue East)

This will advise that Council at its meeting held on October 12, 2004, passed Bylaw 2004-294, which designated "Milliken Public School", 4600 Steeles Avenue East, as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest.

A copy of the by-law, with the pertinent registration data, is attached for your information.

Sincerely,

liller

Sheila Birrell Town Clerk

Encl.

cc: The Ontario Heritage Foundation R. Hutcheson, Manager, Heritage Planning

CERTIFIED A TRUE COPY "Sheila Birrell" c/s SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM



BY-LAW 2004-294

A by-law to designate a property as being of Historic and/or Architectural Value or Interest Milliken Public School

WHEREAS Pursuant to Part IV of the Ontario Heritage Act, the council of a municipality is authorized to enact by-laws to designate a real property, including all the buildings and structures thereon, to be of historic and/or architectural value or interest;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Markham has caused to be served on the owners of the lands and premises at:

Evangelical Christian Education Association of Scarborough 4600 Steeles Avenue East Markham, ON L3R 0L2

and upon the Ontario Heritage Foundation, notice of intention to designate Milliken Public School, 4600 Steeles Avenue East, and has caused such notice of intention to be published once in a newspaper having a general circulation in the municipality;

AND WHEREAS the reasons for designations are set out in Schedule "B" attached hereto and forming part of this by-law;

NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MARKHAM HEREBY ENACTS AS FOLLOWS:

1. THAT the following real properties, more particularly described in Schedule "A" attached hereto and forming part of this by-law is hereby designated as being of historic and/or architectural value or interest:

Milliken Public School 4600 Steeles Avenue East Town of Markham The Regional Municipality of York

2. THAT the Town Solicitor is hereby authorized to cause a copy of this by-law to be registered against the properties described in Schedule "A" attached hereto in the property Land Registry Office.

READ A FIRST, SECOND, AND THIRD TIME AND PASSED THIS 12TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2004.

"Sheila Birrell"

ž

"Don Cousens"

SHEILA BIRRELL, TOWN CLERK

DON COUSENS, MAYOR

By-law 2004-294 Page 2

à

. مبين .

SCHEDULE 'A' TO BY-LAW 2004-294

In the Town of Markham in the Regional Municipality of York, property descriptions as follows:

,

Part Lot 1, Concession 6, as in R608112; Markham

TOWN OF MARKHAM REGIONAL MUNICIPALITY OF YORK

,

By-law 2004-294 Page 3

SCHEDULE 'B' TO BY-LAW 2004-294

STATEMENT OF HERITAGE ATTRIBUTES

The Milliken Public School, S.S. #8 is recommended for designation under Part IV of the <u>Ontario Heritage Act</u> as a property of cultural heritage value and interest containing the following heritage attributes.

Historical Attributes

The Milliken Public School was built in 1929 on the north side of Steeles Avenue, adjacent to the Village of Milliken.

According to the Journals of the Upper Canada Legislative Assembly, there was a school operating on Lot 1, Concession 6 in 1838 which received an operating grant from the Legislative Assembly. William Galloway was listed as the teacher and 26 students were reported in attendance in June of 1838, 23 students in December 1838.

By 1851, there was another school located on Lot 5, Concession 5 which served the Warden/Kennedy area north of Steeles Avenue to Highway #7. This area was designated as School Section #8 in 1855.

It is not know when the school on Lot 1, Concession 6 closed, nor what happened to the building but the children of Milliken attended school either at Hagerman's Corners to the north or at L'Amoreaux school to the south (Scarborough Township) until 1929.

At that time (1929), the union school, Milliken Public School was opened. It was known as a union school because children on both sides of the line dividing Markham and Scarborough were able to attend. The community of Milliken, similar to the case of Armadale, straddled the Township boundaries.

Mr. L.E. Morgan provided the site for the new school by selling 2 acres to the Board for \$600. The total cost of the project, including land, building and furniture was \$28,000.00. The former Milliken Public School is the only public building designed in the Collegiate Gothic style of architecture to remain in the Town of Markham.

Milliken Public School served the community of Milliken for 39 years until its closure in 1968. This was as a result of the establishment of Marklee School and new schools in Unionville which could accommodate the Milliken Students.

The building was sold in 1968. Later occupants included the Richmond College of Liberal Arts and the Scarborough Christian High School.

Architectural Attributes

The Milliken Public School is an excellent example of the Collegiate Gothic Style of Architecture, and the only example of its type in the Town of Markham. This style, a version of the Neo-Gothic, was used for many larger public school buildings in Ontario from the 1910s to the 1920s. The Milliken example is unusual because of its modest size and rural location.

Standing two storeys high, with its main façade directed south, the school is based on a traditional rectangular, centre hall plan with a projecting frontispiece and an enclosed, one-storey, flat roofed entrance porch. Constructed of reddish brown brick laid in common bond, the building has stone copings and string courses that add decorative relief. The school has a raised, full basement, no longer a regular feature in the more contemporary schools that are generally constructed with grade-level entrances. By-law 2004-294 Page 4

With its flat roof, castellated central parapet, grouped windows and projecting string courses, the Milliken Public School represented a significant departure in architectural style and decoration from the traditional Victorian one room school house model.

All window openings are flat-headed with soldier coursed brick voussoirs, and the fenestration is uniform throughout. The original windows still exist in the main front entry section of the building, however, other main floor windows have been replaced. Formerly, the windows had a 6/1 pane division. The basement level windows were originally double hung sash with a 3/3 pane division.

The main classroom windows are grouped in fives. A continuous stone lugsill further joins these windows together. The three basement windows below the main floor classroom windows are centred beneath the openings above, but spaced apart. A special group of three leaded glass windows lie immediately above the main entrance and below the scribed stone tablet that bears the name of the school. These windows have carved stone surrounds.

The main entrance is within a projecting, enclosed porch, placed centrally on the façade. The structural opening shape of this doorway has an ogee or Tudor arched head. A double set of wood French doors, heavily recessed within a carved stone surround, adds to the decorative quality of the entrance as a whole. A battlement type "label head" of stone is located on top of the entranceway.

The date stone of 1929 is placed on the southwest corner of the main façade - right above the first projecting belt course. The tablet inscribed with the school's name, is above the leaded glass windows, mentioned earlier.

Significant Attributes to be conserved

- 1. Overall form of the building and red-brown brickwork;
- 2. Stone copings, string courses, window and door surrounds, window sills;
- 3. Leaded glass windows over the main entrance;
- 4. Date stone and name stone;
- 5. Window openings;
- 6. Doorway with stone surround and pair of wood French doors;
- 7. Decorative brick coursing;

Contextual <u>Attributes</u>

The former Milliken Public School is a landmark historical feature in the community of Milliken. The school served the community for almost forty years as a public building and later as a private school.

Apart from the Ebenezer United Church, which is some distance to the east of the village, The building is the most significant and visible architectural landmark remaining in the Milliken Village community.